

Faculty Senate • http://www.uwrf.edu/faculty_senate/welcome.html
Senators: Chair – Wes Chapin , Vice Chair – Ogden Rogers, Secretary – John Heppen, Executive Committee – Glenn Potts, Brenda Boetel

April 11, 2007 Date:

To: Faculty Senate and University Community

From: Wes Chapin, Faculty Senate Chair

Tentative Agenda for Faculty Senate Meeting April 11, 2007 Subject:

The 2006-2007 Faculty Senate will meet on April 11, 2007 at 3:40pm in Room 334 of the University Center. Faculty Senators who cannot attend should arrange for a substitute and notify John Heppen at john.heppen@uwrf.edu http://www.uwrf.edu/faculty_senate/

Agenda April 11, 2007

Call to Order:

Seating of Substitutes Recognition of Invited Guests Approval of Minutes from April 4, 2007

Reports:

Unfinished Business:

New Business:

Proposal 1: Second reading of a motion for the Executive Committee to change the description of the Calendar Committee.

Current Language

Membership: Five faculty members appointed by the Faculty Senate (one from each college and the Fourth Division), the Provost (or designee), the Registrar (or designee), the Director of Outreach (or designee), the Director of Graduate Programs (or designee), and a student appointed by the Student Senate.

Proposed Language

Membership: Five faculty members appointed by the Faculty Senate (one from each college and the Fourth Division), the Provost (or designee), the Registrar (or designee), the Director of Outreach (or designee), and a student appointed by the Student Senate.

Proposal 2: A second reading of a motion from FWPP to transfer committee duties and to rename the Faculty Salary Committee (see attached p.7)

New Business Consent Agenda:

Proposal 1: A motion from APP to approve changes to Marketing Communication Program Requirements

Proposal 2: A motion from APP to approve Option B Minor name change to Interdisciplinary Minor.

Proposal 3: A motion from APP to approve program changes in the Department of Geography and Mapping Sciences.

Proposal 4: A motion from APP to approve a credits change to the BS Secondary Education program in the Department of Communicative Disorders.

Proposal 5: A motion from APP to approve a program change in the Department of Political Science.

New Business Miscellaneous:

Faculty Senate Discussion on Strategic Planning.

Adjournment:



Minutes of the UWRF Faculty Senate for April 4, 2007,

Vol. 31 No. 21.

Representation	Term Expires 2007	Term Expires 2008	Term Expires 2009
CAFES	Bob Baker	Laine Vignona	
	Wes Chapin	Patricia Berg (David Furniss)	
	Larry Harred	John Heppen	Peter Johansson
CAS	Barbara Werner**		
COEPS		Ogden Rogers	Michael Miller
CBE			Glenn Potts
4th Division	Cara Rubis	Gregg Heinselman**	Sarah Egerstrom
		Brenda Boetel (Jr)	Melissa Wilson (Jr)
	Karl Peterson (Jr)	Dawn Hukai (Sr)	David Rainville (Sr)
	Nan Jordahl (Sr)		Terry Ferriss (Sr)
At Large			

Charlie Hurt* (Alan	
Tuchtenhagen)	

- Chancellor's Designee
- ** Absent
- () Substitute

Call to Order: Wes Chapin called the meeting to order at 3:42pm.

Seating of Substitutes: Alan Tuchtenhagen for Charlie Hurt

Guests: Brian Shultz, Tim Buttles

Approval of Minutes: The minutes of March 21, 2007 were approved as corrected.

Chair's Report:

- Wes Chapin thanked Ogden Rogers for serving as chair last meeting while he was at Madison.
- Wes Chapin asked the Faculty Senate what is Faculty Governance? Glenn Potts
 said that faculty governance must be broadly defined in regards to participation
 and approval since faculty has the primary responsibility. Bob Baker concurred.
 Nan Jordahl and David Rainville also addressed the question with the belief that
 faculty must have participation. Peter Johansson and Ogden Rogers also
 addressed the issue in a similar manner.
- Wes Chapin passed out a letter from the FWPP committee addressing concerns over strategic planning. Wes Chapin also passed out a progress report on tasks from the Office of the Provost. Wes Chapin distributed the membership of the University Planning Group as received from the Office of the Provost. The 13 member UPG is the successor organization to the Strategic Planning Steering Committee and Wes Chapin noted that there is one member that is appointed from the Faculty Senate and one member by the Student Senate and the rest were appointed. Wes Chapin reported that he was told that there was no algorithm used to determine membership and that the UPG represents the University. Questions were asked from the Senate on the method used to appoint members to the UPG. Sarah Egerstrom reported that she was appointed as the representative of Academic Staff Council. Laine Vignona suggested that we examine what was done in the past in similar situations. Nan Jordahl suggested that we look at the progress report and spend time looking at it. Terry Ferriss stated that there are two types of committees: senate and administrative and that we should examine past protocols for the level of senate involvement. Laine Vignona stated that it seems inconsistent to have a lower level of faculty involvement compared to the participation for the initiatives and tasks. Glenn Potts stated that we did not approve the Strategic Planning Steering Committee and that the administration

has some rights for administrative committees. Bob Baker gave some historical perspective on the formation of the Strategic Planning Steering Committee last Spring.

- Wes Chapin reported on the progress of the Chair Compensation Proposals and questions about the 12 month contracts and what issues are negotiable and that there has been a delay in meeting with the Provost.
- Wes Chapin reported that Motions 49 and 50 were not signed by the Chancellor and accepted as recommendations and that according to our constitutions motions have to be approved or disapproved and that the faculty salary committee has proposed new motions removing the word recommend.

Memorandum

To: Wes Chapin, Chair, Faculty Senate`

From: Brad Mogen, Chair, Faculty Welfare and Personnel Policies Committee

Cc: John Heppen Date: March 30th, 2007

Re: An open letter from FWPP to Senate regarding the Strategic Planning process

and timeline.

Wes,

One of the duties relegated to the FWPP committee is to monitor and relay to the faculty at large issues that have a direct bearing on their working conditions. We believe that the lack of any significant progress regarding the implementation of the Strategic Plan since December of 2006 is precisely one of these issues. Our FWPP-SPWG committee alone committed tremendous numbers of hours and an entire semester to the strategic planning process: virtually all other issues that might have otherwise been addressed were postponed. The campus has devoted large amounts of time and energy to this effort with the promise that results would be forthcoming. Where are they?

Faculty, staff, and students returned from Christmas break energized and justifiably proud by all they had accomplished. We had completed the planning process with extraordinary commitment and unity, while accommodating an unusually aggressive timeline established by Senate that consumed much of the entire fall semester—all with the tacit promise that priorities would be assigned to the Goals so the campus could *rapidly* move forward. It was particularly exciting to see the DRAFT Strategic Planning Priority Timeline, dated November 28, 2006, as this appeared to consolidate the Strategic Planning Process and turn it into a reality with achievable goals and deadlines. As of today, March 30th, 2007, we are not aware of a single official Task that has moved forward and we have long passed the proposed February and March 1st initiation dates indicated on the draft. The simple reality is that with only five weeks of class left and no

Tasks officially assigned to their appropriate committees, nothing of significance will get accomplished during the entire Spring semester—essential momentum has stagnated.

Faculty, staff, and students need to see and believe that the work they have done during the planning process in 06/07 was not in vain. One way Administration might demonstrate "good faith" is to move forward on one or two of the most critical strategic planning goals yet this semester. We ask that those steps be taken immediately and communication be made to the entire campus community regarding which goal/s will move forward this semester, including an updated and realistic implementation timeline for the entire plan.

Vice-Chair's Report:

Ogden Rogers reported that David Furniss and Dennis Cooper have accepted nominations for senior faculty at-large and will announce the candidates for junior atlarge and termination committee.

Other Reports:

Brian Schultz from the Advising Committee reported that the size and structure of the committee is good. They are losing one member of the committee and the member may run again for the committee, and the committee is working on keeping communication open with advising groups and finding appropriate inputs from students and faculty on the advising process and will look at proposing an assessment tool in the future.

Unfinished Business: none

New Business:

Proposal 1: A motion from FWPP to recommend that Senate forward the nomination of Dr. Gary Rohde to be appointed to the State Group Insurance Board. Nan Jordahl and Bob Baker first and seconded the motion respectively. The motion passed by general consent.

Proposal 2: A motion from the Faculty Senate Executive Committee to rewrite Chapter III Organization of the Faculty and Staff 3.2 Constitution of the UW-River Falls Faculty Article VI The Faculty Senate Section C Election Procedures for the Faculty Senate. John Heppen and Larry Harred first and seconded the motion respectively. Ogden Rogers stated that this was a way to simplify the election process and that the present system is a de facto primary election. David Rainville asked about the number of signatures needed for at-large senator. It was replied that currently you need 15 signatures to be added to the ballot and that ten signatures was used to simplify the process. Wes Chapin stated that this motion must go to the faculty for a vote and then be sent to the Chancellor. Alan Tuchtenhagen made two points about the need for electronic voting in the future and does this process preclude an electronic petition process. The motion passed with 15 yes votes 1 no vote and 3 abstentions.

Proposal 3: A motion from Faculty Salary Committee that the 2007-09 pay plan be submitted with 2/3 of any increase going to solid performance and 1/3 for merit/market was made by David Rainville and seconded by David Furniss. The motion passed with 17 yes votes, 1 no vote, and 1 abstention.

Proposal 4: A motion from Faculty Salary Committee that the Chancellor follow the example of the majority of other UW-System chancellors and abstain from taking the 10% discretionary fund was first and seconded by David Rainville and John Heppen respectively. The motion passed with 16 yes votes, 1 no vote, and 2 abstentions.

Proposal 5: First reading of a motion for the Executive Committee to change the description of the Calendar Committee.

Proposal 6: Second reading of a motion from the Assessment Committee to change its duties. John Heppen and Peter Johansson first and seconded the motion respectively. Tim Buttles spoke to the issue. The motion passed with 18 yes votes, 0 no votes, and 1 abstention.

Proposal 7: Motion from FWPP to amend the Faculty Handbook. The Faculty Welfare and Personnel Policies Committee (FWPP) requests that Senate consider the attached recommended changes to the Faculty Handbook to help clarify some vague language. Sarah Egerstrom and Glenn Potts first and seconded the motion respectively. Glenn Potts spoke to the issue. Glenn Potts stated that issued regarding confusion in the current wording over the minority reports, summary statements from the Chair and a clarification over work days are important. The motion passed by general consent.

Proposal 8: A first reading of a motion from FWPP to transfer committee duties and to rename the Faculty Salary Committee.

New Business Miscellaneous:

Proposal 9: David Rainville moved that the Faculty Senate recommend that the Administration delay meeting of the University Planning Group until the Faculty Senate is able to consider the selection of the membership and its compliance with the policies of shared governance. Larry Harred seconded the motion. Nan Jordahl recommended that the Faculty Senate meet next week. Michael Miller asked Glenn Potts and Terry Ferriss how they were appointed to the UPG. They both stated that they were asked by the Provost and they accepted. Nan Jordahl stated why not ask how they choose people. Michael Miller asked that we obtain information prior to meeting. David Rainville stated that they should not go forward without Faculty Senate input. Alan Tuchtenhagen asked how would obtaining information impact what is going on now. Wes Chapin stated that all three bodies (Academic Staff Council, Student Senate, Faculty Senate) were asked to submit one name. Nan Jordahl and Laine Vignona asked if this was fair representation and that representation is the issue. Wes Chapin asked the Senate if one faculty senate representative out of 15 is adequate. Ogden Rogers asked what was the understanding of how the UPG was to be chosen. Wes Chapin replied that it was his understanding it was

supposed to be the result of discussion between the Faculty Senate and the Administration. David Rainville stated that he made the motion for the ability to go back and check the process. John Heppen stated that it was important to have a formal motion/statement if the senate has questions. Peter Johansson stated that it's a matter of perception and the UPG does not represent faculty. The motion passed with 9 yes votes, 1 no vote and 9 abstentions.

Wes Chapin reported on the status of faculty senate chair compensation and release time for next year in comparison to other UW institutions. Peter Johansson spoke about the Redbook being taken offline by the UW-System. Ogden Rogers stated that the Redbook is online within the System but in a less user-friendly format.

Adjournment: The Faculty Senate adjourned at 5:25pm by general consent.

Memorandum

To: Wes Chapin, Chair, Faculty Senate`

From: Brad Mogen, Chair, Faculty Welfare and Personnel Policies Committee

Cc: John Heppen Date: March 30th, 2007

Re: Motion to transfer committee duties and to rename the Faculty Salary Committee.

Wes,

The Faculty Welfare and Personnel Policies Committee (FWPP) met on March 23 and began reviewing the charges established for the FWPP as outlined in the current Faculty Handbook: 18th edition. One of the duties currently expected of the FWPP is listed as Section J–3. a. 8): "fringe benefits" (Chapter III page 19).

The FWPP Committee recommends that, although fringe benefits clearly impact the welfare of all faculty and staff, fringe benefits are more closely tied to, and should be evaluated as part of, our overall compensation package. Therefore, the FWPP Committee recommends that Senate:

- transfer the duties of evaluating existing and proposed fringe benefits packages to the faculty Salary Committee, and
- as a result of this transfer of duties and responsibility, rename the existing Faculty Salary Committee to be the Faculty Compensation Committee to more accurately describe its revised duties.

Should Senate choose to approve this recommendation, duty a. 8) "fringe benefits" would be removed from Section J: Faculty Welfare and Personnel Policies Committee and transferred to Section I: Faculty Compensation Committee.

FWPP also recommends that the FWPP duty included under a. 6): "sick leaves, leaves of absence, faculty development leaves, etc." be amended such that the evaluation of "sick leaves and collegial coverage" ("and collegial coverage" would be inserted as new wording) as a benefit also be transferred to the newly formed Faculty Compensation Committee and that reference moved in the handbook. Please see the attached for all proposed revision recommendations.

These changes would tie the evaluation of salaries and benefits into a single, more logical committee structure as these issues are normally negotiated as a combined package.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.

Dad Mage

Proposed Changes to Handbook describing the duties of the

FWPP Committee (Faculty Handbook Chapter III):

Section J – Faculty Welfare and Personnel Policies Committee

- Membership: Seven faculty with at least one each from the following: academic staff and/or the rank of instructor, assistant professor, Affirmative Action associate professor, professor; and two students. The Assistant to the Chancellor for Equity and Compliance, the Provost & Vice Chancellor's designee, the Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance, and the Special Assistant to the Chancellor are all ex-officio, nonvoting members.
- 2 Term of Office: Three years, with two or three appointed each year in accordance with the number of vacancies occurring.
- 3 Duties:
 - a. To develop, continuously evaluate, recommend, and inform the faculty of policies and procedures relating to:
 - 1) equity and affirmative action;
 - 2) appointments and dismissal (academic year, summer, and extension);
 - 3) promotions and determination of rank;

- 4) personnel evaluations and recommendations;
- 5) tenure;
- 6) sick leaves, leaves of absence, faculty development leaves, etc., and
- 7) faculty working conditions.; and
- 8) fringe benefits.

(Note: remainder of duties outlined in handbook remain unchanged)

Proposed Changes to Handbook describing the duties of the Faculty Compensation Committee (Faculty Handbook Chapter III):

Section I -Faculty Compensation Committee

- Membership: Eight faculty with at least one from each of the following: academic staff and/or the rank of instructor, assistant professor, associate professor, professor; and two students. In addition, the UW-River Falls faculty representative to the UW-System's Faculty/Staff Compensation Advisory Committee is a full, voting member. [FS 03-04 #2] The Assistant to the Chancellor for Equity and Affirmative Action, the Provost & Vice Chancellor or the Provost & Vice Chancellor's designee, the Vice Chancellor for Administration and Finance, and the Special Assistant to the Chancellor are all ex-officio, non-voting members.
- 2 Term of Office: Three years, with two or three appointed each year in accordance with the number of vacancies occurring.
- 3 Duties:
 - To develop, continuously evaluate, recommend, and inform the faculty of policies and procedures relating to the following:
 - 1) Salary and salary <u>increases</u> <u>issues</u>, <u>including but not restricted to J-term compensation</u>, <u>summer session compensation</u>, <u>overloads</u>, <u>reassigned time and compression</u>;
 - 2) Personnel evaluation and recommendations <u>that</u> pertain to salary and salary increases;
 - 3) Existing and proposed changes to personnel fringe benefits, including sick leave, collegial coverage and medical plan options.
 - b. Provide an annual written summary to the Senate and all faculty each April addressing the biennial compensation plan, and any additional relevant issues reflected under duties a. 1)–3) above.